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Introduction
As I write this in early August it is still uncertain whether our talk on 9th September will take place as planned at the Keene Hall.  If it goes ahead members may need to reserve a place to manage attendee numbers.  We will advise you of the latest position and how to book a place if we go ahead either by Email or insert with this newsletter. 
Some of you may know that our President David Stacy has been in Manor Lodge Care Home in Chelmsford for some months now.  I am pleased to be able to let members know that he is as well as can be expected and avoided the dreaded virus. He is unlikely to return home.
Blue Plaques – part 4 - The Old School

The Old School 1838-1966 and Chapel of Ease on Sundays 1838-1873

A Chapel of Ease is a church building other than a Parish Church built within the bounds of a Parish for attendance by those who cannot conveniently reach the Parish Church – which here would have been St Mary’s in Great Baddow.    

The original intention was to build such a place of worship.  The then vicar at St Mary’s is recorded as referring to ‘the demoralizing effects of the races where many persons of irregular habits are often tempted to make this place their residence to be out of restraint and observation’ with the new building ‘providing a permanent institution for the education of the poor in the principles of the Church of England’.  
Prior to 1838 there are records of a Church Day School in a cottage and later a house on the Common let to the parish for school use.  In 1831 this had 41 children.  The basis of the present building was erected at the instigation of Rev Bramston (St Mary’s Great Baddow) on land given by Archer Houblon, then Lord of the Manor.  It cost just over £772 (against an estimate of £400) raised by public subscription. 
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The photo courtesy of John Cummin shows Ken Edwards outside the building with the plaque on the wall
	The chapel was opened for divine service in April 1938 at which stage the village had some 700 souls.   
For those who know the village - the Methodist Chapel (now closed) predates the Chapel of Ease.  

A school bell called children to school on weekdays (paying a penny per pupil per week) and worshipers to the chapel on Sundays.  Miss Sarah Grutchfield was its first head-teacher and lived in a small house in the grounds since demolished. By 1848 some 80 day scholars are recorded




 The building was recognised from the outset as a ‘national school’ which meant the ratepayers were responsible for maintenance costs with the building managed by trustees. Such costs were an ongoing issue e.g. 1908 saw better windows costs of £32 having to be met by the vicar.  That year also saw the school gain its own water supply with the pump now standing in the grounds of The Keene Hall.  

From 1873 the school ceased to be a place of worship with the building of St Michael and All Angels church on Galleywood Common.

The church building was funded by Mr Arthur Prior of Hylands House at a cost of £6,300.  Famously, Mr Prior walked out during the first sermon due to its ‘Popishness’ and never returned.    


By 1912 the school capacity was 155 following substantial alterations part funded by the Gooch Family then living in Hylands House.  1928 saw the deeds transferred to the vicar and churchwardens of St Michaels and the appointment of Mr J W (Smogger) Smith as headmaster, a role he retained for 26 years. The Smogger nickname was gained from his cough – a result of gassing during World War I.

1935 saw the addition of two classrooms due to the generosity of Mrs Lavinia Keene.  1943 saw the older children move to Moulsham School – a secondary school.  But with the general post war baby boom and onset of the building of new estates across the village, demand for schooling continued to outstrip supply.  By 1950 the Keene Hall itself was being used for lunches and some classes, two demountable classrooms were added in 1963 and by 1965 at least one class was being taught in the Vicarage Hall in Beehive Lane.

This could not continue and in the mid 1960’s the school moved to two adjacent purpose built sites in Barnard Road where Galleywood Infants School (opened in 1966) and St Michael’s Junior School (opened in 1967) are today.   The junior school was funded by the church authorities and local support as the County Education Committee had no plans to build more than an school for infants at that time.  


The freehold of the old site by the Eagle crossroads was acquired from the Vicar of Galleywood and Church Wardens by Essex County Council in October 1968.  Since then uses have included play groups (Magnet Club and later Rainbow Pre-school), Plectrooms (Music Group) and Essex Association of Boys and Girls Club.  It currently houses a Youth Club run by Chelmsford YMCA funded by Galleywood Parish Council and elements of Essex County Council’s Education Services.
Forthcoming Heritage Centre events

For the very latest information please see the Galleywood Heritage Centre website www.galleywoodheritagecentre.org.uk .  The tea room has opened for outside consumption and hall and room bookings are being taken.  An events calendar of talks of interest is being drawn up.
Historical Society News
We were very pleased to be able to support Galleywood Festival 2020 in early June.  Although we were not involved in its most visual aspect – The Scarecrow Competition – we did supply a number of recordings which lit up the airwaves during festival week.  The most popular were the Oral History recordings of Christine Whybro with over 100 listeners on day one.  More on the event can be found on the Festival website www.galleywood.org.     

Forthcoming Society Talks

Subject to change – please check website for latest position
Wednesday 9th September 2020 – Preserving the Past on Paper.  Established Essex writer and columnist Sylvia Kent talks on this subject.  She will have some of her books available for purchase.
Wednesday 11th November 2020 – The Galleywood Soldiers of WWI.  Heritage Centre Archivist Wendy Cummin talks to us on Remembrance Day.
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